STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
BUREAU OF HOMELESS AND HOUSING SERVICES

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9196  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196

Maureen U. Ryan FAX: 603-271-5139 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director of Human
Services

May 17, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Homeless
and Housing Services to amend a sole source agreement with Granite United Way
(Vendor # 202684-B001), 22 Concord Street, 2" Floor, Manchester NH 03103, for the
provision of Intervention services for the State Grant-in-Aid Funds Program, by
increasing the price limitation by $50,000 from $100,000 to $150,000 while extending
the completion date from June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018, effective July 1, 2017 or upon
Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later. The original agreement
was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on October 21, 2015 (item #12).
This contract is funded with 100% General Funds.

Funding is available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2017 and is
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2018 upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal
Years through the Budget Office, without further approval of the Governor and
Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7928 (REPLACED BY 05-95-42-423010-7927 ON JULY 1, 2017)
HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER

PROGRAM
. . Current Increase/ Modified
SFY | Class/Object Title Amount (Decrease) Amount
Contracts for
2016 102-500731 Program Services $50,000 $0 $50,000
Contracts for
2017 102-500731 Program Services $50,000 $0 $50,000
2018 | 102500731 | , Soniracts for $0 $50,000 $50,000
rogram Services
Total: | $100,000 $50,000 $150,000
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EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because Granite United Way is the only vendor in
New Hampshire that provides a telephone intervention hotline for services throughout
the state.

Granite United Way (211 NH) provides information and referral services to
homeless persons, persons who are at risk of homelessness, and to any other caller
seeking information about available homeless services in NH. The homeless hotline
operated by NH 211 is a 24 hour service that is available to all callers. During NH 211’s
normal business hours, which are Monday — Friday from 8am — 7pm, a 211 call center
operator takes calls, conducts a brief assessment of need, and provides immediate
referrals to appropriate homeless services. This could include immediate placement into
a homeless shelter and transportation to shelter if needed. During non-business hours,
on-call operators take calls for emergency shelter only. All other callers with non-urgent
needs are called back the following business day. In the case of an emergency shelter
need, the on-call operator will locate a shelter bed and arrange transportation to the
shelter. If there are no shelter beds available, 211 will arrange an emergency hotel stay
for the client until the next business day.

In order to provide appropriate information and referrals to homeless services,
NH 211 also maintains a centralized resource database, which is accessible by phone
or online at www.211nh.org. NH 211 serves as the primary entry point into NH’s
Coordinated Entry system, which is a streamlined process for entering into the
homeless services system that is mandated by the US Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD).

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by the vendor. The
original agreement reserved the Department’s right to renew the agreements for up to
two (2) additional years, based upon satisfactory delivery of services, and continued
availability of funds and Governor and Executive Council approval. The attached
amendment calls for the renewal of the provision of these services for one (1) year,
leaving one (1) additional year of renewal.

The amendment provides that, notwithstanding any other provision of the
Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the
Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided after June 30,
2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the
state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorized this request, individuals
and families who are without housing and resources may resort to seeking local shelter
in places that are not fit for people to live in, or will attempt to travel to shelters in other
communities. This will increase the likelihood that homeless people will be in danger of
injury or death, and will be cut off from basic supports for health, education and
treatment.
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Area Served: Statewide
Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted,

/Y /
Ma

en U. Ryan

Approved by:

frey AL Meyers
missioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission Is to join communities and families
In providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-271-1516 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet
Commissioner

May 19, 2017

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency’s request to enter into a sole source contract amendment with Granite United
Way (Vendor # 202684-B001) of Manchester, NH as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2018-
032A.

The requested action authorizes the Department of Health and Human Services to enter
into a sole source contract amendment with Granite United Way to continue to provide
intervention service for the State Grant-In-Aid Funds Program. Granite United Way (211
NH) provides a 24 hour telephone intervention information and referral services hotline
to homeless persons, persons who are at risk of homelessness, and to any other caller
seeking information about available homeless services in NH.

The funding amount for this amendment is $50,000.00, increasing the current contract
from $100,000.00 to $150,000.00. The contract shall become effective upon Governor
and Council approval through June 30, 2018.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services’
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely
WA
Denis Goulet

DG/kaf
DolT #2018-032A

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolIT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the
State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds Program

This 1% Amendment to the State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds Program (hereinafter referred to as
“Amendment # 1°) dated this 21st day of March, 2017, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
Granite United Way, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit company with a place of
business at 22 Concord Street, 2™ Floor, PO Box 211, Manchester, NH 03105.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 21, 2015 (item#12), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3, the State
may at its sole discretion, amend and renew the contract upon written agreement of the parties and
approval of the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation, to
support continued delivery of these services, and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.6, to read 05-95-42-423010-7927-102-500731/ 05-95-42-423010-
7928-102-500731.

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7, to read June 30, 2018.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8, to increase Price Limitation by $50,000 from $100,000 to read:
$150,000.

4. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director of Contracts and
Procurement.

5. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10, to read 603-271-9246.

6. Add Exhibit A, Paragraph 1, Conditional Nature of Agreement, Subparagraph 1.8 to read as
follows:

1.8 Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for
services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these
services has been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY
2018-2019 biennia.

7. Delete Exhibit B in its entirety and replace with Exhibit B - Amendment #1.

Granite United Way Amendment #1 Contractor Initials: 5\

16-DHHS-OHS-BHHS-02 Page 1 of 3 Date: 5 40-¢Y



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

ag//&//z (/MGMM

D Namel ey pgbs Eyfat
Title: § rect 7
Wited Way
M [0 o7 axél/[ /

Datef/ 7

Acknowledgement of Contractor’s signature:

State of MM«MCounty of A@%&m 2&%(0 o/ foefore the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person id@ntified directly Above, or satisfactorily proven to

be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

gignature of Notary?ublic or Justice of the Peace

W/lon cul 1 ye dSI/J.fdn«:C/Of/i'ce 7974)44}21./

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: dlm.l; DZ% oo
7

KATHLEEN A. SCANLON
Notary Public - New Hampshire
My Commission Expires June 24, 2020

Granite United Way Amendment #1 Contractor Initials: i ;

16-DHHS-OHS-BHHS-02 Page 2 of 3 Date: 5’\0' \1



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
State Grant-In-Aid (SGIA) Funds Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

elsiz0 > e, T
ate e 57 Asst~ AT ] el

Title:

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
Granite United Way Amendment #1 Contractor Initials:()(

16-DHHS-OHS-BHHS-02 Page 3 of 3 pate. QD" \2 6



State of Nefw Hampshire

Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that Granite United Way is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed March
30, 1927. 1 further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is concerned,

having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 23" day of May A.D. 2016

% M-/
William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




QuickStart

Business Information

Business Details

Business Name: GRANITE UNITED WAY

Domestic Nonprofit

Business Type: .
usiness 1yp Corporation

Busi Creation
usiness Creatio 03/30/1927
Date:

Date of Formation in
Jurisdiction:

Principal Office 46 SOUTH MAIN STREET,
Address: CONCORD, NH, 03301, USA

03/30/1927

Citizenship / State of
Incorporation:

Domestic/New Hampshire

Duration: Perpetual

Business Email: NONE

Notification Email: NONE

Page 2 of 5

Business ID: 65650
Business Status: Good Standing

Name in State of

. Not Available
Incorporation:

Mailing Address: 22 Concord Street, Manchester,
03101, USA

Last Nonprofit
Report Year:

Next Report
Year:

2020

Phone #: NONE

i
iscal Year End NONE
Date:

Principal Purpose

NAICS Subcode

S.No NAICS Code
OTHER / Engages 20,000 donors and
1 volunteers to raise and invest local dollars in

our communities.

Page 1 of 1, records 1 to 1 of 1

https://quickstart.sos.nh.gov/online/Businessinquire/BusinessInformation?businessID=23164  5/9/2017



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1, Nannu Nobis, do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Officer of Granite United Way.
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on August 20,2015:
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the President & CEO
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 10th day of May, 2017.
(Date Contract Signed)

4. Patrick Tufts is the duly elected President & CEQ of the Agency.
(Name of Contract Signatory)  (Title of Contract Signatory)

M‘\Q\/

(Signature oﬁﬁe ElectedOfficer)
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of ’4 evrimack_

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ’ O‘t’h day of M a L[ , 20 '7 ,

By /Va wrl, A)°b/’)‘

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agen‘cy)

\\\\“““””//
Ve Lvy 2,

',

SHELLEY LYN RYAN, Notary Public
My Commission Expires October 7, 2020

J /I
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NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
2/28/2017

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

PRODUCER

CONTACT sara Hartshorn

THE ROWLEY AGENCY INC. PHONE . (603)224-2562 FAR Noj: (603)224-8012
45 Constitution Avenue Bt ss. shartshorn@rowleyagency. com

P.0O. Box 511 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE } NAIC #
Concord NH 03302-0511 INSURER A Hanover Ins - Bedford

INSURED INSURER B :

Granite United Way INSURER C :

22 Concord Street INSURER D :

Floor 2 INSURERE :

Manchester NH 03101 INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:17-18 All Lines REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL]SUBR

POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY,

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER LIMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY \ ZHV900337106 1 1/1/2017 | 1/1/2018 H OCCURRENCE 1,000,000
{ EAC U 3
DAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE @ OCCUR [ I ‘ PREMISES (Ea occurrence $ 100,000
[ } r MED EXP (Any one person) | $ 5,000
/ : PERSONAL & ADV INJURY 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: ‘ GENERAL AGGREGATE | 2,000,000
X | poLicy RS Loc ( ‘ PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 2,000,000
OTHER: | [s
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY | zZEv900337106 J 1/1/2017 | 1/1/2018 | GOMBINED SINGLELIMIT™ g 1,000,000
ANY AUTO [ BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED J .
ATOS AUToS ‘ ‘ BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
NON-OWNED ‘ ! PROPERTY DAMAGE 3
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS [ r Per accident
1 | | s
A UMBRELLA LIAB X | occur J UHV9003210-06 J 1/1/2017 { 1/1/2018 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
i EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE ! AGGREGATE ) 1,000,000
pEp | X | RETENTIONS 0 | ‘ $
A WHVB996802-06 | 1/1/2017 | 1/1/2018 | X |EER orR- 1
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN , ws // STATUTE ER
|ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE States: NH [ E L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 500,000

| OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

[ ||nia

|
s
[

(Mandatory in NH) [ E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEd $ 500,000
es, describe under ! [
D SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below ! ‘ E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000

|
0 0 {
WORKERS COMPENSATION }
1
H

_| f

(
| i
|

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Covering operations of the named insured during the policy period.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NH DHHS
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Sara Hartshorn/SBH /gw—/ qé/mz‘fém/

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 201401

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. Ali rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



LIVE UNITED

United
Way /

Granite United Way

Granite United Way Mission

Granite United Way’s mission is to improve the quality of people’s lives by bringing together the
caring power of communities.

Granite United Way Vision

Granite United Way's vision is to be the preferred way people work together to build a community that
values its collective responsibility to care for each other.



GRANITE UNITED WAY
FINANCIAL REPORT

MARCH 31, 2016
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & BUSINESS ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Granite United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Granite United Way, which comprise the
statement of financial position as of March 31, 2016, and the related statements of activities and changes
in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
erTor.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Granite United Way as of March 31, 2016, and the results of its operations, changes in
net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.




Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Granite United Way March 31, 2015 financial statements, and we
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated July 14,
2015. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2015 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from
which it has been derived.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The supplementary schedules of community impact awards to qualified partner agencies and emerging
opportunity grants are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

OZm"/)cm Iecholen f“ Co«p&ndu

Concord, New Hampshire
August 25, 2016

Page 2



GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

March 31, 2016 with comparative totals as of March 31, 2015

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Prepaid and reimbursable expenses
Investments

Accounts and rent receivable
Contributions and grants receivable, net of allowance for
uncollectible contributions 2016 $499,427; 2015 $516,591
Assets held for sale
Total current assets

OTHER ASSETS
Property and equipment, net
Investments - endowment
Beneficial interest in assets held by others

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

ALLOCATED ANNUAL CAMPAIGN SUPPORT
DESIGNATED FOR FUTURE PERIODS
Future allocations payable
Donor-designations payable

Cwrrent maturities of long-term debt

Funds held for others

Grants payable

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue - designation fees
Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT, less current maturities
COMMITMENTS (See Notes)

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT):
Unrestricted
Unrestricted, invested in property and equipment
Total unrestricted net deficit
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets (deficit)

Total liabilities and net assets

See Notes to Financial Statements.

2016 2015
Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total
$ 512,163 $ 413,953 $ - % 926,116 $ 1,002,210
38,245 - - 38,245 220,967
463,743 - - 463,743 473,361
6,846 - - 6,846 7,255
- 3,673,854 - 3,673,854 3,514,617
109,568 - - 109,568 -
1,130,565 4,087,807 - 5,218,372 5,218,410
1,303,019 - - 1,303,019 1,452,541
9,272 37,928 100,397 147,597 145,864
- 1,587,401 - 1,587,401 1,737,703
1,312,291 1,625,329 100,397 3,038,017 3,336,108
$ 2442856 $ 5713136 $ 100,397 $ 8,256,389 $ 8,554,518
$ 2276379 $ - 5 - $ 2,276,379 $ 2,288,886
390,547 1,080,514 - 1,471,061 1,303,999
2,666,926 1,080,514 - 3,747,440 3,592,885
11,683 - - 11,683 11,198
28,960 - - 28,960 66,756
- - - - 22,000
18,958 - - 18,958 5,911
120,736 - - 120,736 139,665
47,344 - - 47,344 42,838
2,894,607 1,080,514 - 3,975,121 3,881,253
239,018 - - 239,018 250,447
(1,743,087) - - (1,743,087) (1,295,992)
1,052,318 - - 1,052,318 1,190,896
(690,769) - - (690,769) (105,096)
- 4,632,622 - 4,632,622 4,427,517
- - 100,397 100,397 100,397
(690,769) 4,632,622 100,397 4,042,250 4,422,818
$ 2442856 $ 5713136 $ 100397 $ 8,256,389 $ 8554518

Page 3



GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year ended March 31, 2016 with comparative totals for the year ended March 31, 2015

2016 2015
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total
Support and revenues
Campaign revenue;
Total contributions pledged $ -$ 6,878,664 $ - % 6,878664 $ 7,020,221
Less donor designations - (1,895,593) - (1,895,593) (1,501,742)
Less provision for uncollectible pledges - (296,558) - (296,558) (307,265)
Add prior years' excess provision for uncollectible
pledges taken into income in current year 159,007 - - 159,007 111,654
Net campaign revenue 159,007 4,686,513 - 4,845,520 5,322,868
Support:
Sponsors and other contributions 3,852 712,595 - 716,447 311,399
Grant revenue - 635,227 - 635,227 155,946
In-kind contributions 57,365 - - 57,365 31,169
Total support 220,224 6,034,335 - 6,254,559 5,821,382
Other revenue:
Administrative fees 58,073 - - 58,073 157,070
Rental income 80,497 - - 80,497 49,011
Miscellaneous income 2,776 - - 2,776 4,594
Total support and revenues 361,570 6,034,335 - 6,395,905 6,032,057
Net assets released from restrictions:
For satisfaction of time restrictions 4,636,943 (4,636,943) - - -
For satisfaction of program restrictions 1,043,608 (1,043,608) - - -
6,042,121 353,784 - 6,395,905 6,032,057
Expenses:
Program services 5,471,034 - - 5,471,034 4,583,109
Support services:
Management and general 484,246 - - 484,246 731,108
Fundraising 753,390 - - 753,390 556,505
Total expenses 6,708,670 - - 6,708,670 5,870,722
Increase (decrease) in net assets before other activities (666,549) 353,784 - (312,765) 161,335
Other activities:
Increase (decrease) in value of beneficial interest in trusts,
net of fees 2016 $11,422; 2015 $11,082 - (150,302) - (150,302) 33,850
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments (9,312) (1,266) - (10,578) 19,750
Investment income 90,188 2,889 - 93,077 99,903
Total other activities 80,876 (148,679) - _ (67,803) 153,503
Net increase (decrease) in net assets (585,673) 205,105 - (380,568) 314,838
Net assets (deficit), beginning of year (105,096) 4,427,517 100,397 4,422,818 4,107,980
Net assets (deficit), end of year $ (690,769) $ 4,632,622 $ 100,397 $ 4,042,250 $ 4,422 818

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended March 31, 2016 with comparative totals for the year ended March 31, 2015

2016 2015
Program Management
services and general  Fundraising Total Total
Salaries and wages $ 1,747,474 $ 288933 $ 457,252 $ 2493659 $ 1,869,797
Payroll taxes 109,099 20,958 33,167 163,224 131,100
Employee fringe benefits 169,413 27,297 43,198 239,908 177,627
Employer 403(b) contribution 48,467 9,310 14,734 72,511 72,414
Total salaries and related

benefits 2,074,453 346,498 548,351 2,969,302 2,250,938
Community Impact Grants to agencies 2,360,600 - - 2,360,600 2,319,424
Occupancy 154,498 16,715 26,453 197,666 193,301
Grant expenses-Public Health Network 174,300 - - 174,300 77,865
Other program services (See Note 13) 168,783 - - 168,783 198,177
Telephone, communications and technology 62,492 11,390 18,026 91,908 86,529
211 expenses 89,218 - - 89,218 120,768
Publications, printing and campaign expenses - - 76,767 76,767 71,212
United Way Worldwide dues 44,997 8,644 13,680 67,321 65,855
In-kind expenses 38,342 7,366 11,657 57,365 31,169
Professional services - 56,695 - 56,695 47,399
Supplies and office expense 31,448 6,041 9,561 47,050 48,947
Insurance 23,763 4,565 7,224 35,552 33,476
Travel 21,441 3,974 6,289 31,704 38,125
Volunteer Income Tax Assistance expenses 27,816 - - 27,816 40,880
STEAM Ahead expenses 27,508 - - 27,508 -
Concord Cold Weather Shelter 21,520 - - 21,520 -
Miscellaneous 11,733 2,254 3,567 17,554 12,610
Special events 14,258 919 1,455 16,632 15,763
Conferences, training and meetings 10,879 2,090 3,307 16,276 14,135
Postage 9,729 1,869 2,958 14,556 12,186
Community needs assessment 12,500 - - 12,500 10,500
Other dues and awards 7,519 1,445 2,286 11,250 8,568
Homeless Service Center expenses 6,000 - - 6,000 61,000
Community impact expenses 5,501 - - 5,501 4,183
Investment fees 3,295 633 1,002 4,930 10,507

Total expenses before interest
and depreciation 5,402,593 471,098 732,583 6,606,274 5,773,517
Interest expense 7,563 1,453 2,299 11,315 11,521
Depreciation 60,878 11,695 18,508 91,081 85,684
Total functional expenses $ 5,471,034 $ 484246 $ 753,390 $ 6,708,670 $ 5,870,722

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended March 31, 2016 and 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from donors
Cash received from grantors
Administrative fees
Other cash received
Cash received from trust
Designations paid A
Net cash (paid) received for funds held for others
Cash paid to agencies
Cash paid to suppliers, employees, and others
Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchase of investments
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments of long-term debt

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

See Notes to Financial Statements.

2016 2015
7236918 $ 6,831,761
635,227 225,439
62,579 57,092
83,682 54,720
73,308 71,733
(1,728,531) (1,347,640)
(37,796) 34,260
(2,333,702) (2,825,524)
(4,017,957) (3,590,392)
(26,272) (488,551)
(51,127) (13,794)
12,249 911,378

- (380,813)

(38,878) 516,771
(10,944) (10,518)
(76,094) 17,702
1,002,210 984,508
926,116 $ 1,002,210
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
Years Ended March 31, 2016 and 2015

2016 2015
RECONCILIATION OF INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
TO NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ (380,568) $ 314,838
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets
to net cash used in operating activities:

Realized and unrealized (gain) loss on investments 10,578 (19,750)
Reinvested interest and dividends (14,942) (19,537)
Depreciation 91,081 85,684
Prior years' excess provision for uncollectible pledges (159,007) (111,654)
Decrease in accounts and rent receivable 409 1,115
(Increase) decrease in prepaid and reimbursable expenses 182,722 (133,324)
Increase in contributions receivable (230) (90,144)
Decrease in grants receivable - 11,743
(Increase) decrease in value of beneficial interest in assets
held by others 150,302 (33,850)
Increase (decrease) in allocated annual campaign 154,555 (310,620)
Increase (decrease) in funds held for others (37,796) 34,260
Decrease in grants payable (22,000) (86,078)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 13,047 (54,255)
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses (18,929) 22,998
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 4,506 (99,977)
Net cash used in operating activities $ (26,272) $ (488,551)

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash payments for:
Interest expense $ 11,315 $ 11,521

See Notes to Financial Statements. Page 7



GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notel. Nature of Activities

Granite United Way (the “United Way”) was formed on July 1, 2010, as the result of a merger of four local
not-for-profit entities - Heritage United Way, Inc., United Way of Merrimack County, North Country United
Way and Upper Valley United Way. All of these entities shared the common goal to raise and distribute
funds for the community’s needs. This merger allows for shared resources and reduction in overhead in
order to increase impact in the communities the United Way serves.

On February 1, 2012, the United Way acquired the assets and assumed the liabilities of United Way of
Northern New Hampshire. On January 1, 2013, the United Way acquired the assets and assumed the
liabilities of Lakes Region United Way.

The United Way conducts annual campaigns in the fall of each year to support hundreds of local programs,
primarily in the subsequent year, while the State Employee Charitable Campaign, managed by the United
Way, is conducted in May and June. Campaign contributions are used to support local health and human
services programs, collaborations and to pay the United Way’s operating expenses. Donors may designate
their pledges to support a region of the United Way, a Community Impact area, other United Ways or to any
health and human service organization having 501(c)(3) tax-exempt status. Amounts pledged to other
United Ways or agencies are included in the total contributions pledged revenue and as designations
expense. The related amounts receivable and payable are reported as an asset and liability in the statement of
financial position. The net campaign results are reflected as temporarily restricted in the accompanying
statement of activities and changes in net assets, as the amounts are to be collected in the following year.
Prior year campaign results are reflected as net assets released from restrictions in the current year statement
of activities and changes in net assets.

The United Way invests in the community through three different vehicles:

March 31, 2016
Community Impact Awards to partner agencies $ 2,360,600
Donor designated gifts to Health and Human Service agencies 1,895,593
Granite United Way Program services 3,110,434

Total $ 7,366,627

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting: The financial statements of the United Way have been prepared on the accrual basis.
Under the accrual basis, revenues and gains are recognized when earned and expenses and losses are
recognized when incurred. The significant accounting policies followed are described below to enhance
the usefulness of the financial statements to the reader.

Estimates and assumptions: The United Way prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial
statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. Accordingly, actual

results could differ from those estimates.
(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows, the United Way considers all highly liquid
debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The United Way
had no cash equivalents at March 31, 2016 and 2015.

Basis of presentation: The United Way accounts for contributions received in accordance with the FASB
Accounting Standards Codification topic for revenue recognition (FASB ASC 958-605) and contributions
made in accordance with FASB ASC 958-720-25 and FASB ASC 958-310. In accordance with FASB ASC
958-605-25, contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently
restricted support, depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. In addition, FASB ASC
958-310 requires that unconditional promises to give (pledges) be recorded as receivables and recognized
as revenues.

The United Way adheres to the Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Organizations topic of
the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC 958-205). Under FASB ASC 958-205, the United
Way is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes
of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.
Descriptions of the three net asset categories are as follows:

Unrestricted net assets include both undesignated and designated net assets, which are the revenues
not restricted by outside sources and revenues designated by the Board of Directors for special
purposes and their related expenses.

Temporarily restricted net assets include gifts and pledges for which time restrictions or donor-
imposed restricions have not yet been met and donor designations payable associated with
uncollected pledges. Temporarily restricted net assets also include the beneficial interest in assets
held by others and the accumulated appreciation related to permanently restricted endowment
gifts, which is a requirement of FASB ASC 958-205-45.

Permanently restricted net assets include gifts which require, by donor restriction, that the corpus be
invested in perpetuity and only the income or a portion thereof be made available for program
operations in accordance with donor restrictions.

Contributions receivable: Campaign pledge contributions are generally paid within one year. The United
Way provides an allowance for uncollectible pledges at the time campaign results are recorded. Provisions
for uncollectible pledges have been recorded in the amount of $296,558 and $307,265 for the campaign years
ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The provision for uncollectible pledges was calculated at 4.5%
of the total pledges for both years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015.

Investments: The United Way’s investments in marketable equity securities and all debt securities are
reported at their fair value based upon quoted market prices in the accompanying statement of financial
position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the changes in net assets in the accompanying
statement of activities. The United Way’s investments do not have a significant concentration of credit risk
within any industry, geographic location, or specific location.

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred revenue: The United Way charged a 10% administrative fee on the State Campaign designations
for both years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015. The United Way charged 5% on most other designations for
both of the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015.

These administrative fees are recognized in the post campaign years, as this is the year they are available to
offset administrative expenses.

Donated goods and services: Contributed services are recognized when the services received would
typically need to be purchased if they had not been provided by donation or require specialized skills and
are provided by individuals possessing those skills. Various types of in-kind support, including services,
call center space, gift certificates, materials and other items, amounting to $57,365 and $31,169 have been
reflected at fair value in the financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

A substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of their time in United Way’s
program services; however, the value of this contributed time is not reflected in the accompanying
financial statements since the volunteers’ time does not meet the criteria for recognition.

Functional allocation of expenses: The cost of providing the various programs and other activities has been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities and changes in net assets. Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are included in unrestricted net assets and are carried at
cost if purchased and fair value if contributed. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are expensed as
incurred, and major renewals and betterments are capitalized. The United Way capitalizes additions of
property and equipment in excess of $1,000.

Depreciation of property and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over the following
useful lives:

Years
Building and building improvements............cooeiiciniee et 5-31%2
Leasehold iMProvements ...ttt s ss s e ese s nssaes 15
Furniture and eqUIPMENt ...t 3-10

Concentrations of credit risk: Financial instruments which potentially subject the United Way to
concentrations of credit risk, consist primarily of contributions receivable, substantially all of which are from
individuals, businesses, or not-for-profit organizations. Concentrations of credit risk are limited due to the
large number of donors comprising the United Way’s donor base. As a result, at March 31, 2016, the United
Way does not consider itself to have any significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to contributions
receivable,

In addition, the United Way maintains cash accounts with several financial institutions insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. Amounts included in cash in excess of federally
insured limits were approximately $130,120 at March 31, 2016.

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income taxes: The United Way is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The United Way is also exempt from state income taxes by virtue of its ongoing exemption
from federal income taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded in the
accompanying financial statements.

The United Way has adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 740 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.
Accordingly, management has evaluated the United Way’s tax positions and concluded the United Way had
maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business income and had taken no
uncertain tax positions that require adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.

With few exceptions, the United Way is no longer subject to income tax examinations by the U.S. Federal or
State tax authorities for tax years before 2013. Also included are filings for United Way of Northern New
Hampshire and Lakes Region United Way prior to their acquisitions on February 1, 2012 and January 1, 2013,
respectively.

Note 3. Fair Value Measurements

The Fair Value Measurements Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10)
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

¢ Level 1 - inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets at the
measurement date. The types of assets carried at Level 1 fair value generally are securities listed in
active markets. The United Way has valued their investments listed on national exchanges at the
last sales price as of the day of valuation.

e Level 2 - inputs are based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation
techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

e Level 3 - inputs are generally unobservable and typically reflect management’s estimates of
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. The fair values are
therefore determined using model-based techniques that include option-pricing models,
discounted cash flow models, and similar techniques.

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial assets carried at fair value on a recurring basis consist of the following at March 31, 2016:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Money market funds $ 79529 $ 6,384 $ -
Mutual funds:
Domestic equity 89,491 - -
International equity 4,188 - -
Fixed income 247,901 - -
Other 5,164 - -
Fixed income funds 143,747 - -
Municipal bonds - 11,057 -
Corporate bonds - 25,552 -
Beneficial interest in assets held by others - - 1,587,401
Total $ 570,020 % 42993 $ 1,587,401

Financial assets carried at fair value on a recurring basis consist of the following at March 31, 2015:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Money market funds $ 57,146 % 7370 % -
Mutual funds:
Domestic equity 91,342 - -
International equity 4,551 - -
Fixed income 256,427 - -
Other 5,147 - -
Fixed income funds 143,593 - -
Municipal bonds - 11,100 -
Corporate bonds - 45,723 -
Beneficial interest in assets held by others - - 1,737,703
Total $ 558,206 $ 64193 $ 1,737,703

Balance, April 1, 2014
Total unrealized gains, net of fees included in changes in
temporarily restricted net assets
Balance, March 31, 2015
Total unrealized losses, net of fees included in changes in
temporarily restricted net assets
Balance, March 31, 2016
Amount of unrealized losses, net of fees attributable to change in unrealized

losses relating to assets still held at the reporting date included in the
statement of activities and changes in net assets

Beneficial interest in
assets held by others

$ 1,703,853

33,850
$ 1,737,703

(150,302)
$ 1,587,401

$  (150,302)

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All assets have been valued using a market approach, except for the beneficial interest in assets held by
others, and have been consistently applied. The market approach uses prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets. Prices may be
indicated by pricing guides, sales transactions, market trades, or other sources. The fair value of
investments in money market funds is based upon the net asset values determined by the underlying
investments in which the funds invest.

The beneficial interest in assets held by others is valued using the income approach. The value is
determined by calculating the present value of future distributions expected to be received, which
approximates the value of the trust’s assets at March 31, 2016 and 2015.

GAAP requires disclosure of an estimate of fair value for certain financial instruments. The United Way’s

significant financial instruments include cash and other short-term assets and liabilities. For these
financial instruments, carrying values approximate fair value.

Note 4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, at cost, at March 31, 2016 2015
Land, buildings and building improvements $ 1,708,167 $ 1,817,736
Leasehold improvements 5,061 5,061
Furniture and equipment 398,497 347,370

Total property and equipment 2,111,725 2,170,167
Less accumulated depreciation (808,706) (717,626)
Total property and equipment, net $ 1,303,019 § 1,452,541

Note 5. Assets Held for Sale

During the year ended March 31, 2016, the United Way made the decision to sell their property in Concord,
New Hampshire. Negotiations for the assets held for sale are for a sale price in excess of carrying value.

Assets held for sale consisted of the following at March 31, 2016 2015
Building $ 89,781 $ -
Building improvements 19,787 -

: Total assets held for sale $ 109,568 $ -

Note 6. Endowment Funds Held by Others

Agency endowed funds: The United Way is a beneficiary of various agency endowment funds at The New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing these funds, property
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as separate funds designated for the
benefit of the United Way. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation may make distributions
from the funds to the United Way. The distributions are approximately 4.03% of the market value of each
fund per year.

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The estimated value of the future distributions from the funds is included in these financial statements as
required by FASB ASC 958-605, however, all property in the fund was contributed to The New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the United Way.

The United Way received $68,879 and $67,400 from the agency endowed funds during the years ended
March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Designated funds: The United Way is also a beneficiary of two designated funds at The New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing these funds, property
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as a separate fund designated for the
benefit of the United Way. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation makes distributions from
the funds to the United Way.

The distributions are approximately 4.03% of the market value of the fund per year. These funds are not
included in these financial statements, since all property in these funds was contributed to The New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the United Way.

The United Way received $4,429 and $4,333 from the designated funds during the year ended March 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively. The market value of these fund’s assets amounted to approximately $102,000 and
$111,700 as of March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Note 7. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt at March 31, 2016 2015
4.25% mortgage financed with a local bank. The note is due
in monthly installments of principal and interest of
$1,837 through December 2031. The note is collateralized

by the United Way's building located in Plymouth, NH. $ 250,701 $ 261,645
Less portion payable within one year 11,683 11,198
Total long-term debt $ 239,018 $ 250,447

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt at March 31, 2016 were as follows:

Year Ending March 31,

2017 $ 11,683
2018 12,190
2019 12,718
2020 13,269
2021 13,844
Thereafter 186,997

Total $ 250,701

The mortgage note with Franklin Savings Bank contains a financial covenant for debt service coverage, which
is tested annually based on the year-end financial statements.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8. Funds Held for Others

The United Way held funds for others for the following projects:

March 31, 2016 2015
Concord Multicultural Project Fund $ 17,571 $ 33,038
STEAM Ahead - 23,485
Get Moving Manchester 748 1,798
Mayor's Prayer Breakfast 10,472 3,241
City of Concord Dog Park - 3,606
Better Together 169 1,588

Total $ 28,960 $ 66,756

During the year ended March 31, 2016, STEAM Ahead transitioned to a program of the United Way.

Note 9. Endowment Funds and Net Assets

The United Way adheres to the Other Presentation Matters section of the Presentation of Financial
Statements for Not-for-Profit Organizations topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC
958-205-45).

FASB ASC 958-205-45 provides guidance on the net asset classification of donor-restricted endowment funds
for a nonprofit organization that is subject to an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA).

FASB ASC 958-205-45 also requires additional disclosures about an organization’s endowment funds (both
donor-restricted endowment funds and board-designated endowment funds) whether or not the
organization is subject to UPMIFA.

The State of New Hampshire enacted UPMIFA effective July 1, 2008, the provisions of which apply to
endowment funds existing on or established after that date. The United Way’s endowment consists of three
individual funds established for youth programs, Whole Village and general operating support. Its
endowment includes both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of
Directors to function as endowments. As required by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment funds,
including those funds designated by the Board of Directors, are classified and reported based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

The Board of Directors of the United Way has interpreted UPMIFA as allowing the United Way to
appropriate for expenditure or accumulate so much of an endowment fund as the United Way determines to

be prudent for the uses, benefits, purposes and duration for which the endowment fund is established,
subject to the intent of the donor as expressed in the gift instrument.

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As aresult of this interpretation, the United Way classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original
value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the
permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the
direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The
remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net
assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure
by the United Way in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.

In accordance with UPMIFA, the United Way considers the following factors in making a determination to
appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration and preservation of the
various funds, (2) the purposes of the donor-restricted endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions,
(4) the possible effect of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total return from income and the
appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of the United Way, and (7) the investment policies of the
United Way.

Investment Return Objectives, Risk Parameters and Strategies: The United Way has adopted investment
policies, approved by the Board of Directors, for endowment assets for the long-term. The United Way seeks
to achieve an after-cost total real rate of return, including investment income as well as capital appreciation,
which exceeds the annual distribution with acceptable level of risk.

Investment risk is measured in terms of the total endowment fund; investment assets and allocations
between asset classes and strategies are managed to not expose the fund to unacceptable level of risk.

Spending Policy: The United Way does not currently have a spending policy for distributions each year as
they strive to operate within a budget of their current Campaign’s income. To date there have been no
distributions from the endowment fund.

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of March 31, 2016 is as follows:

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Donor-restricted endowment
funds $ - % 37,928 % 100,397 % 138,325
Board-designated endowment
funds 9,272 - - 9,272
$ 9272 % 37,928 $ 100,397 $ 147,597

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Changes in the endowment net assets as of March 31, 2016 are as follows:

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Endowment net assets,
March 31, 2015 $ 9162 % 36,305 $ 100,397 $ 145,864
Investment returmn:
Investment income 195 2,889 - 3,084
Net depreciation
(realized and unrealized) (85) (1,266) - (1,351)
Total investment return 110 1,623 - 1,733
Endowment net assets,
March 31, 2016 $ 9272 $ 37928 % 100,397 $ 147,597

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of March 31, 2015 is as follows:

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Donor-restricted endowment
funds $ -5 36,305 $ 100,397 $ 136,702
Board-designated endowment
funds 9,162 - - 9,162
$ 9162 $ 36,305 % 100,397 % 145,864

Changes in the endowment net assets as of March 31, 2015 are as follows:

Temporarily. Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Endowment net assets,
March 31, 2014 $ 8,765 $ 30,384 % 100,397 $ 139,546
Investment return:
Investment income 204 3,038 - 3,242
Net appreciation
(realized and unrealized) 193 2,883 - 3,076
Total investment return 397 5,921 - 6,318
Endowment net assets,
March 31, 2015 $ 9162 % 36,305 % 100,397 $ 145,864

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income from permanently restricted net assets is available for the following purposes:

March 31, 2016 2015
General operations $ 14,930 $ 14,930
Youth programs 11,467 11,467
General operations of Whole Village 74,000 74,000

Total permanently restricted net assets $ 100,397 $ 100,397

Temporarily restricted net assets consisted of support and other unexpended revenues and represent
the following:

March 31, 2016 2015
Public Health Network services $ 99,025 $ 62,197
Contributions receivable related to campaigns 3,541,854 3,514,617
CDFA contributions receivable for the Bridge House and

Whole Village Family Resource Center upgrades 132,000 -
Designations payable to other agencies and United Ways (1,080,514) (971,039)
211 Program 225,227 -
Volunteer income tax assistance program 15,258 33,630
Other programs 16,279 14,104
STEAM Ahead 27,084 -
Concord Cold Weather Shelter 31,080 -
Agency endowed funds at the New Hampshire

Charitable Foundation 1,587,401 1,737,703
Portion of perpetual endowment funds subject to

time restriction under UPMIFA 37,928 36,305

Total temporarily restricted net assets $ 4,632,622 $ 4427517

The United Way was awarded up to $257,500 in Community Development Investment Program Funds by
the Community Development Finance Authority (“CDFA”) for upgrades and clean energy improvements to
the Bridge House and Whole Village Family Resource Center in Plymouth. During the year ended March 31,
2016, the CDFA accepted $165,000 in donations from area businesses, resulting in net tax proceeds to the
United Way of $132,000 to benefit the project. This balance has been included in contributions receivable at
March 31, 2016.

At March 31, 2016 and 2015, the Board of Directors has designated net assets amounting to $- and $394,087,
respectively, which are funds set aside to meet the emerging opportunity needs of the community as they
arise.

In addition, the Board of Directors has designated $20,000 and $50,000, respectively, for the South Central
Health Network and Working Bridges during the year ended March 31, 2016.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 10. Pension Fund

The United Way sponsors a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue
Code, whereby electing employees contribute a portion of their salaries to the plan. For the years ended
March 31, 2016 and 2015, the United Way contributed $72,511 and $72414, respectively to employees
participating in the plan.

Note11. Lease Commitments and Subsequent Event

During the year ended March 31, 2011, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for office
space in Manchester, New Hampshire. The original term was for five years with options to renew for two
additional five-year terms. The terms of the lease require monthly payments of $2,373 with increases of 2%
annually on each anniversary date of the lease. The lease also required the United Way to pay its share of
other costs such as taxes, maintenance and insurance amounting to $500 per month.

During the year ended March 31, 2015, the United Way leased additional office space in the same building.
The monthly payments were $600 through April 2015 and then increased to $875 beginning in May 2015.
The lease agreement is an addendum to the operating lease agreement for the main office space. The United
Way did not renew for an additional term when the operating lease expired on May 31, 2015, and was
instead leasing on a month-to-month basis.

During May 2016, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for the office space in
Manchester, New Hampshire that they currently occupy and for additional office space at that location.
Monthly rent payments are $2,783 for the first year and increase to $5,566 the second year which is when all
leasehold improvements are expected to be completed for the additional office space hence the increase in
rental amount. The rent will then be increased by 3% annually on each anniversary date of the lease.

Total rent expense amounted to $46,290 and $39,572 for the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

The United Way leases a copy machine under the terms of an operating lease. The lease matured on October
1, 2014. The United Way began a new operating lease for a copy machine on October 1, 2014 with a term of
60 months. The monthly lease payment amount is $170. The lease expense amounted to $2,036 for both years
ended March 31, 2016 and 2015.

The United Way's future minimum lease commitments are as follows:

Year ending March, 31
2017 $ 2,036
2018 2,036
2019 1,018
Total $ 5,090
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note12. Commitments

The United Way does not own the land on which their building in Laconia, New Hampshire is located. The
United Way is part of a condominium association to which they pay quarterly dues that fund certain
maintenance costs. For the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, the dues amounted to $3,325 and $3,259,
respectively.

In Plymouth, the United Way rents space in a building which they own and occupy to twelve non-affiliated,
non-profit organizations. The monthly lease payments range from $125 to $1,500 per month. For the years
ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, the rental income amounted to $59,102 and $46,285, respectively. The United
Way also provides space at no charge to one tenant in the Plymouth, New Hampshire building for affordable
childcare services in support of its mission to provide services, support and resources to develop strong
families, confident parents and healthy children.

Note13. Other Program Services

Other program services included in the accompanying statement of functional expenses include expenses for
the following programs:

Year ending March 31, 2016 2015
Women's Leadership Council $ -$ 27,302
Financial Stability Program 1,692 44,287
Whole Village Family Resource Center 51,294 33,894
Service Learning Partnership 45,000 35,000
Northern NH direct client services 16,663 11,185
Youth Venture Program - 592
Bring It Program 38,636 26,421
Other program services 9,997 4,114
Carroll County United 3,672 15,313
Curcuru Community Service Fund 1,829 69

Total $ 168,783 $ 198,177

Note 14. Payment to Affiliated Organizations and Related Party

The United Way paid dues to United Way of Worldwide. The United Way’s dues paid to this affiliated
organization aggregated $67,321 and $65,855 for the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The United Way is reimbursed for services provided to United Ways of New Hampshire. The total amount
that was billed to United Ways of New Hampshire for services amounted to approximately $- and $213,696
for the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Included in prepaid and reimbursable expenses in the accompanying statements of financial position is $-
and $103,631 at March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, that is due to United Way from United Ways of New
Hampshire.

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On April 1, 2015, the 211 program transitioned to a program of the United Way. Previously, the United Ways
of New Hampshire operated the 211 program. The United Way paid dues amounting to $- and $120,768 to
the United Ways of New Hampshire for the 211 program for the years ended March 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

Note 15. Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the March 31, 2015 financial statement presentation to correspond
to the current year’s format. Net assets and changes in net assets are unchanged due to these
reclassifications.

Note 16. Subsequent Events

During May 2016, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for the office space in
Manchester, New Hampshire that they currently occupy and for additional office space at that location (see
Note 11).

Subsequent to year end, the United Way entered into a purchase and sale agreement for the sale of the
Concord office space. The transaction amounting to $220,000 is expected to close during the year ended
March 31, 2017.

The United Way has evaluated subsequent events through August 25, 2016, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued, and have not evaluated subsequent events after that date. There were

no other subsequent events that would require disclosure in financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2016.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS
MERRIMACK COUNTY REGION

Year Ended March 31, 2016

Blueberry Express Day Care

Boys and Girls Clubs of Central New Hampshire - Suncook capital project
Child and Family Services of New Hampshire

Community Action Program:
Meals on Wheels
Head Start

Community Bridges:
Early Supports & Services

Concord Coalition to End Homelessness

Concord Family YMCA:
Child Development Center
Copper Cannon Camp
Merrimack Valley Day Care
NH Legal Assistance
NH Pro Bono Referral System
Penacook Community Center
Pittsfield Youth Workshop
Second Start:
Adult Education
Alternative High School
First Start
The Friends Program:
Emerging Housing
Foster Grandparents
The Mayhew Program

Community
Impact
Awards

$ 32,000

10,000
15,000

35,000
17,000

20,000
20,000

25,000

5,000
90,000
60,000
18,000
47,078
30,000

14,000
14,000
15,000

35,000
18,000
10,000

$ 530,078
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS
MERRIMACK COUNTY REGION (CONTINUED)

Year Ended March 31, 2016
Emerging
Opportunity
Grants
The Friends Program - Youth Mentoring $ 35,000
Suncook Capital Project ‘ 10,000
Penacook Community Center 8,500
Merrimack Valley Day Care - Special Infant Care 21,000
Merrimack Valley Day Care - Building Improvements 39,237
Riverbend - CHIP 30,000
$ 143,737
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

NORTH COUNTRY REGION
Year Ended March 31, 2016
Community
Impact
Awards
Boys and Girls Club of the North Country - After School Program $ 9,800
Copper Cannon Camp 3,000
Grafton County Senior Citizens:
Aging Services 9,800
RSVP Bone Builders 4,500
ServiceLink 2,750
NH Legal Assistance 3,000
Northern Human Services 2,552
Tri-County Community Action Program 4,000
$ 39,402
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

UPPER VALLEY REGION
Year Ended March 31, 2016

Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital
Child and Family Services of New Hampshire:
Behavioral Health
Safe Visitation Program
Child Care Center in Norwich
Child Care Resource
Community Action Program Belknap
Copper Cannon Camp
Cover Home Repair
Dismas of Vermont
Girls Incorporated of New Hampshire
Global Campuses Foundation
Good Neighbor Health Clinic/Red Logan Dental Clinic
Grafton County Senior Citizens Council:
Chore Corps
Supporting Health Access
ServiceLink
Green Mountain Children's Center
Health Connections of the Upper Valley
HIV/HCV Resource Center
Mt. Ascutney Hospital and Health Center
NH Legal Assistance
Safeline, Inc.
Second Wind Foundation:
Community Education & Advocacy
Turning Point Recovery Center
Willow Grove
Special Needs Support Center of the Upper Valley:
Educational Advocacy
Springfield Warming Shelter
Southeastern Vermont Community Action:
Fuel and Housing Assistance

Community
Impact
Awards

20,000

19,000
23,000
6,000
3,375
2,750
1,000
27,000
12,500
7,000
3,000
15,000

1,300
13,500
2,500
28,975
1,000
10,000
15,000
9,000
11,000

9,000
15,000
10,000

5,000
1,500

20,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

UPPER VALLEY REGION (CONTINUED)
Year Ended March 31, 2016

The Family Place - Families Learning Together
The Children's Center of the Upper Valley:
Closing the Gap on Low-Middle Income Families
Increasing Literacy Opportunities
The Mayhew Program
Twin Pines Housing Trust
Affordable Housing
Support and Services at Home
Upper Valley Haven:
Community Services Program
Shelter Services Program
Valley Court Diversion Program:
Adult Restorative Court Diversion Program
Court Diversion Program
Vermont Law School
Willing Hands - Feeding Hungry Neighbors
Windham and Windsor Housing Trust:
Financial Capabilities
Support and Services at Home
Windsor County Partners:
Lunch Program
Partners Always Lend Support Program
WISE:
Crisis Intervention & Support Services
Emergency Shelter & Housing
Prevention & Community Education

Springfield Warming Shelter

Spark! Community Center

Second Wind Foundation

Upper Valley Community Nurse Program

West Central Behavioral Health - In-Shape Program
Child and Family Services - Security Upgrades

Community
Impact
Awards

$ 9,000

9,000
5,000
4,000

22,000
14,851

15,000
19,000

10,000
9,000
10,000
4,999

6,000
7,100

2,000
3,000

17,244
7,200
6,000

$ 472,794

Emerging
Opportunity
Grants

$ 3,000

5,000
2,500
3,835
3,835
6,682

$ 24,852
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS
SOUTHERN REGION
Year Ended March 31, 2016

Bhutanese Community of New Hampshire
Big Brothers Big Sisters of New Hampshire
Boys and Girls Club of Manchester
City Year New Hampshire - Whole School Whole Child
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
Girls Incorporated of New Hampshire
Granite State Children's Alliance
Manchester Neighborhood Health Improvement Strategy:
Building Adult Capacities Collaborative
Childhood Resiliency and Care Coordination
Manchester Community Health Center:
Behavioral Health Integration Program
Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc.
NH Legal Assistance
Rockingham Nutrition & Meals on Wheels Program
Serenity Place:
Residential Treatment Program
Transitional Living Program
St. Joseph Community Services, Inc.
The Granite YMCA:
YMCA Power Scholars Academy
YMCA Start

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester - Bedford Counseling Assoc.

The Upper Room, A Family Resource Center
The Way Home - Steps to Success in Safe, Affordable Housing
YWCA New Hampshire - Crisis Service

Community
Impact
Awards

$ 15,000

10,000
23,000
50,000
20,000
20,000
10,000

230,000
170,000

40,000
12,500
23,000
15,000

50,000
25,000
20,000

10,000
25,000
25,000
15,000
25,000
25,000

$ 858,500
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

NORTHERN REGION
Year Ended March 31, 2016

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire
Community Action Program Belknap
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
Copper Cannon Camp
Harvest Christian Fellowship:
Community Café
Feeding Hope Food Pantry
Helping Hands North, Inc.
NH Legal Assistance
NHJAG
Northern Human Services
White Mountain Community College:
Assisting People in Transition
Child Development Center

Community
Impact
Awards

$ 1,000

1,000
3,500
3,000

2,500
3,000
3,000
2,000
3,000
5,000

1,500
1,500

$ 30,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

CENTRAL REGION

Year Ended March 31, 2016
Community
Impact
Awards
Appalachian Mountain Teen Project $ 9,703
Belknap County Economic Development Council 24,258
Boys and Girls Clubs of Central New Hampshire 19,406
Health First Family Care Center 41,239
Laconia Area Community Land Trust 33,961
Lakes Region Child Care Services 58,219
Lakes Region Community Services 33,961
River's Edge Early Learning Fit Up 8,000
Salvation Army 24,258
$ 253,005
Emerging
Opportunity
Grants
Boys and Girls Club of Central New Hampshire $ 8,500
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2017 GUW Board Members

Southern Region

Merrimack County

Joe Carelli
Citizens Bank

Nannu Nobis, Chairman
Nobis Engineering, Inc.

Dean Christon, Immediate Past Chair
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority

Mariene Hammond
Lincoln Financial Group

Jeremy Veilleux, Treasurer
Baker Newman Noyes

Charlie Head
Sanborn, Head & Associates

Sean Owen, First Vice Chair
Wedu and Talient Action Group

Larry Major
Pike Industries

Jason Cole
Catholic Medical Center

Heidi Nadeau
H.L. Turner Group

Michael Delahanty
Salem School District

Jeffrey Savage
Community Volunteer

John Mercier
Primary Bank

Gary Shirk
Bovie Screen Printing

Paul Mertzic
Catholic Medical Center

Rodney Tenney
Community Volunteer

Joseph Purington
Eversource Energy

James Scammon
Granite Group Benefits, Inc.

Charla Stevens
McLane Middleton

Heather Staples Lavoie, Second Vice Chair
Geneia

Anna Thomas
Manchester Health Department

Central Region

Robert Tourigny Paul Falvey

Neighborworks of So. New Hampshire Bank of New Hampshire

Steven Webb Sue Ruka

TD Bank Memorial Hospital

Upper Valley Cass Walker
LRGHealthcare

Gordon Ehret Rick Wyman

Hypertherm, Inc.

NH Mutual Bankcorp.
Meredith Village Savings Bank

Julia Griffin
Town of Hanover

Northern Region

Evan Smith
Hypertherm, Inc.

Bill Bedor, Secretary
Bedor Management & Investments, Inc.

Sally Ann Kraft
Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center




Cary Gladstone

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE
Information & Referral

Currently supervise statf of 6, including call center operations and resource database statf at
211-NH, statewide Information and Referral service

provide training to social service providers and community with strong referral component
to statewide and national financial resources

Maintain relationships with public health, after school, family strengthening and asset
building programs and their leadership throughout NH & VT

Conducted training for 211-NH staff on VITA program

Started information and referral program at Family Resource Center

Community Tax Preparation/Asset Building

Currently supervise 7 VITA (Volunteer Income Tax Assistance) sites in 6-county area of
NH & VT, managing statf and overseeing volunteer recruitment and training

Lead community-based statewide asset building program, including chairing the CASH
(Creating Assets, Savings & Hope) Coalition of the Lakes Region, part of the Financial
Stability Partnership, and CA$H Coalition of NH

Co-organized statewide NH Asset Summits in 2013 & 2015

Coordinated Franklin and Manchester, NH VITA sites, resulting in 742%0 increase in
families served.

Coordinated matched savings program for first ime home ownership, college funding, small
business and vehicle purchase.

Developed information and referral services for Family Resource Center.

Organized “It’s Your Money” Show to provide 200 adults and youth access to financial
resources.

Workforce Development/Training

Coordinated economic development project in conjunction with local community and
business leaders for the purpose of business retention and expansion.

Developed alternative work experience placements as part of statewide welfare-to-work.
Initiated pilot program on job-secking for people with arthritis.
Assisted in bringing satellite office of NH Employment Security to Franklin, NH.

Work with Diverse and Underserved Populations

Co-organizer of diversity conference with attendance from 7 states.

Served on Multicultural Festival organizing committee.

Organized workshops for people with disabilities and their families.
Presented workshops for people of low-to-moderate socioeconomic standing.



Cary Gladstone, p. 2

Employment
2012-Date Granite United Way

2005-2012 Casey Family Services
2000-2004 NH Community Loan Fund

Previously: NH Job Training Council
Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association
Arthritis Foundation
American Heart Association
River Valley Community College
WIKE, Newport, VI /WTSV, Claremont, NH

EDUCATION

Southern New Hampshire University, Master of Science, Community Economic Development
University System of New Hampshire, Bachelor’s Degree, Management

Grahm Jr. College, Associate in Applied Science, Communications

CIViC

CATCH Neighborhood Housing (Board of Directors member, Board secretary), Concord Task
Force Against Racism and Intolerance (member), Choose Franklin (past Advisory Board member),
Trailwrights (member), Community Players of Concord (past Board member)



Joseph F. Frappiea

Summary of Qualifications
e Effective results through self-motivation and determination.
e Expertise includes collections and customer relations, social services

Professional Experience

Granite United Way
3/16 — Present Director 211 Call Center Operations

Supervise all call center staff
Oversee scheduling

Monitor call volume

Schedule training

Manage difficult callers

Duties of I&R Referral Specialist
Create PowerPoint presentation
Create call charts

Granite United Way
5/15t0 3/16 211 Information and Referral Specialist

Liberty Utilities

Search Database

Gather and record data from callers

Serve callers with languages other than English, via interpreter services
Provide friendly, professional and supportive services

Survey callers to ensure their needs have been met

Perform administrative duties

Other duties as assigned

3/14 to 12/14 Credit & Collections Supervisor

Ensure compliance of PUC regulatory rules

Create regulatory letters and disconnect notices

Conduct interviews for customer service, credit and collection positions
Coordinated and implemented training classes

Eversource (Public Service of New Hampshire)
8/07 to 2/14 Credit Supervisor

Handle appeal calls

Assign work for credit specialist and credit counselors
Handle large power billing customers on disconnect
MC state wide agency meetings

Create PowerPoint presentations

Write employee reviews

Perform credit counselor jobs when needed

Conduct interviews

7/98 to 8/07 Credit Counselor

Handle credit related phone calls for both deposits & account receivables
Review collection orders to be worked

Call on statement billing accounts that are past due

Maintain high level of availability for incoming calls

Perform safety presentations

Work as a team with other employees to achieve company goals

Help to train new employees

Work closely with agencies to provide assistance for customers

Attend state wide agency meetings

Work with NH Public Utilities Commission



10/95 to 07/98 Credit Specialist
s  Process collection orders for payment or disconnect service for both residential
and business customers
e  Work with customers face to face regarding their past due account
e Disconnect and connect single and 3 phase meters
e Outbound calls on past due accounts
e New employee training

Professional Achievements
¢ Chairman of Celebration Committee for year 2000 / Co-Chaired 2007
e 23 Years 10 Months of Employment with the same company
e Reduced 90 days past due accounts receivables from $48 million to $12million

Computer Skills
e Proficient with Microsoft Office Products
e Database Usage: Cogsdale, C2, CACS, and Customer Service Systems

Education Graduate of Bellows Falls Union High School



|| NICHOLAS D. JOSLIN I\

Nick Joslin@?211nh.org

OBJECTIVES
To obtain a position that will benefit from my knowledge, skills and abilities in this industry and to

maximize my work activities and context to achieve a positive outcome.

EDUCATION
American [nstutute ot Technology
03/28/2008 Diploma
Alliance of Information and Referral Services (AIRS) Certified
NH Dept Of Safety and Home Land Security Web ECO Certified

Professional Driver Safety Training Certification
Call Center Protocol and Customer Service Certification
Manager training and staff management Certification
Own and operate 2 small business

Lixperience
Grantte United Way New Hampshire 211
22 Concord St Manchester NH 03102 1-866-444-4211
Resource Database Manager and Information and referral specialist July 2012- Current
Maintain resources in the NH 2-1-1 and ServiceLink database’s, also known as Refer7. Organize and provide
trainings, provide suggestions for improvement. Enter new resources and update existing ones, as well as create work

plans and trackers on a weekly basis. Manage a database employee and ensure they are on task.
Provide mformation and referral to callers in need of social service issues using the 211 database. Assist callers with

needs such as finding homeless shelters, fuel assistance, housing, food and clothing in their area searched by zip
code. Make correct referrals based on the evaluation of the caller’s needs. Record all calls in 211 database. Assist in
crisis sttuations by contacting the proper authorities and coaching individuals through the situation, also providing

referrals for the situation.



Nicholas D Joslin

Belknap-Merrimack County Community Action Program
82 Elkins St Frankln NH 03235 603-934-3444
Fuel Assistance intake worker August 26 2013- Dec 9 2013
Asstst clients with intake of the fuel and electric assistance programs (FAP and EAP). Educate

clients on the programs regulations and qualifications as well as refer to other programs and
resources in their community as necessary. Process applications for review by the certifier’s follow
up with clients in accordance with the time restraints set upon by the program guidelines. Preform

intake for clients through an interactive interview to determine the clients understanding and

eligibility for assistance.

Unired Way Mass 211 Program ¢ 46 Park St., Suite 2, Framingham, MA 01702
Information and Refertal Specialist 09/2009 —7/2014
Provide imnformation and referral to callers in need of social service 1ssues using the 211 database. Assist callers
with needs such as finding homeless shelters, fuel assistance, housing, food and clothing in their area searched by
z1p code. Make correct referrals based on the evaluation of the caller’s needs. Record all calls in 211 database. Assist
in crisis situations by contacting the proper authorities and coaching individuals through the situation, also

providing referrals for the situation.

Homefolk Transportation ¢ 930 Laconia Rd., Belmont, NH 03220
Dispatchet/Manager / Dtiver 10/2011 — 11/2012
Use local or regional geographical knowledge of transportation to communicate technical information. Coordinate
equipment or personnel in mechanical repair setting and expedite freight movement. Explain traffic or transportation
situations concisely as well as direct human or vehicle traffic. Maintain records, reports, and files in an organized
manner according to USDOT laws and regulations. Make critical decisions to ensure the safe and timely movement of
the drivers and the equipment being operated. Manage inventories and supplies as well as make critical financial
decisions day to day dealing with repairs and maintenance. Preform data entry using a custom program. Assist with
billing each week as directed, as well as safety functions. Maintain communications daily directly with customers to

ensure customer satisfaction.

Werner Enterprise ¢ 14507 Fronuer Rd., Omaha, NE 68138
Professional Driver 03/2008 — 03/2009
Pick-up and deliver freight from one location to another using semi-tractor and semi-trailer, following all USDOT
laws and regulations. Fill out all paper work required by the company and the customer such as bill of ladings and
cargo claims paperwork. Maintain USDOT required logs. Plan trips accordingly, while keeping in touch with

dispatcher.
2




Nicholas . Joslin

Sirel/ Client Logic ¢ 620 N Grant St., Odessa, TN 79762
Life insurance Agent 03/2005 — 06/2007

Assist USAA Life Insurance members with payments, as well as set up future payments and policy upgrades. Provide
members with policy info as requested. Log all calls in company database and process policy change information via
paperwork. Assist members in starting claims.

Cingular Wircless ¢ Midland, TN 79703
Financial Service Representative 03/2003 —03/2005

Assist callers with financial services including payments, promise to pay and reactivation. Negotiate payment
arrangements and resolve any outstanding balances. Log all conversations and account activity in database. Promote
sales by up selling and providing information.

Oneravel.come 501 N. Grane St., Odessa, TN 79762
Ticket Processor 01/2002 — 03/2003

Process commercial airline tickets in timely and accurate manner. Manage company website, assist customers with any

concerns with airline ticketing issues. Identify fraudulent submissions and kick out bad bookings.

SKILLS

Proficient in Microsoft Programs such as:
Word
Excel
PowerPoint
Outlook
Excellent management and organizational skills.
Great time management skills.
Great customer service skills and background.
Ability to understand and execute verbal and wrtten instructions quickly and proficiently.
Very good self-starter
Own, operate and manage small business in Gilford, NTI.
Can safely operate a Class A combination vehicle 26,001 and over.
Good attention to detail.




BRIDGET DIGNAN NOGA

EMPLOYMENT EXPERIENCE

Granite United Way, Manchester, NH June 2016-present

VITA/Contracts Program Manager

¢ Manage statewide VITA {Volunteer Income Tax Assistance) program and sites, including recruitment and
supervision of site coordinators

e Assist in the recruitment, training and certification of VITA volunteers

e Manage grants and contracts to support VITA and 2-1-1 NH operations, including reporting
requirements for contracts with the state of NH and other agencies

e Research, identify and pursue new sources of funding for 2-1-1NH and VITA programs, including but not
limited to grants, government contracts, corporation and foundation support

e Provide detailed analysis of 2-1-1 NH and VITA data to support GUW strategic objectives and resource
development as needed

e Provide VITA and 2-1-1 NH representation at community outreach events and service delivery meetings
as needed.

Dorcas International Institute of Rl, Providence, Rl October 2015-April 2016

Volunteer Income Tax Assistance Program Coordinator

e Oversaw all daily operations of program that provides free income tax return preparation by volunteers

e Prepared tax returns and provide quality review for returns prepared by volunteers; advanced level IRS-
certified tax preparer

e Managed client flow; assessed problems, identified causes, gathered and processed relevant
information, generated possible solutions, made recommendations and resolved issues

e Recruited, trained, and managed volunteers; provided direction, input, and feedback.

The Good Earth Organic Farm & Gardening Center, Hope, RI March-November 2015
Farm Worker
e Assisted farm manager with preparation of field planting beds, planting, cultivating, weeding,
harvesting, and packing vegetable and herb crops
o Performed garden center tasks including transplanting, watering, plant maintenance, and customer
service.

Bethlehem Farm, Alderson, WV September 2011-October 2014
Development Associate; Service-retreat leader
Bethlehem Farm is a nonprofit organization that works with low- income residents of southeastern West Virginia
through home repair and other outreach. All full-time staff members facilitate 13 week-long service retreats for
approximately 400 volunteers, mostly high school and college students, each year.
e As part of development team raising an average of $65,000 per year in grants, wrote grant applications
and reported to funders
o Led crews of volunteers at service sites including thrift store, food pantry, community gardens, and
home repair sites, in partnership with local nonprofit organizations
e Educated volunteers for justice through the teaching of sustainable practices.

Catholic Charities of WV, Hinton, WV September 2011-September 2014
Loaves & Fishes Program Consultant

e Oversaw nearly all aspects of food pantry operation, distributing food weekly to average of 200
households per month

e Managed community gardens producing fresh vegetables for food pantry



Counseled and provided financial assistance to clients who had received utility shutoff notices; manage
various funding sources available for utility assistance

Assisted in operations of thrift store and annual week-long summer camp for children ages six to eleven
as needed.

Olneyville Housing Corporation, Providence, Rl November 2002-August 2011
Asset & Community Building Program Manager, August 2007-August 2011
Olneyville Collaborative Coordinator, June 2005-August 2007
Collaborative Project Associate, November 2003-June 2005
LISC Americorps Member, November 2002-November 2003

Managed Community Building and Asset Building programs and supervised departmental staff of four.
Programs include community engagement, annual community festival, annual neighborhood cleanup,
quarterly newsletter, community garden, coalition of stakeholder organizations, homebuyer education,
credit counseling, foreclosure prevention counseling, Volunteer income Tax Assistance, and innovative
Open Space Stewardship program

Wrote and managed grants; reported to funders. Average of $100,000 per year raised through
successful grant applications and other contributions

Intermediate certified tax preparer through Volunteer Income Tax Assistance program; prepared returns
for English- and Spanish-speaking taxpayers; supervised other preparers including volunteers; recruited
volunteers; reviewed all tax returns. Grew program from serving 73 taxpayers in its first year to nearly
200

Coordinated coalition of 23 stakeholder organizations working for revitalization of the Olneyville
neighborhood. Planned and facilitated monthly member meetings, shared information among members,
and managed working committees

Utilized other skills such as hiring and evaluating staff, leading group tours, event planning, advocacy,
project management, and marketing of homeownership opportunities.

Amos House, Providence, R} August 2001-July 2002
Information and Resource Staff

Served as Americorps volunteer at agency that provides meals, transitional shelter, and social services to
low-income people, homeless adults, and those recovering from substance abuse

Worked as part of case management team to help shelter guests achieve their goals for permanent
housing and to fulfill Amos House’s requirement for community service.

EDUCATION

Providence College, Providence, Rl
Bachelor of Arts in Public & Community Service Studies; Graduated Magna Cum Laude
Minor in Spanish; Spanish National Honor Society

COMPUTER SKILLS

Experienced with Microsoft Windows, Word, Works, Excel, Publisher, Outlook; Adobe InDesign, Adobe
Pagemaker, Quickbooks, various databases, social media, and the Internet



Angel Joslin

e Years of customer service experience

e Personal care provider

e Strong organizational skills

e Problem solving skills

e Ability to make quick decisions

o Ability to stay on task

¢ Phone etiquette

e Experience in:
» Answering and directing phone calls
» Arranging transportation
» Arranging shelter

Work Experience:

Information and Referral Specialist

5/04/2016 — Present

2-1-1 NH

603-621-6893

Identifying client’s needs in order to inform and refer to proper organizations and program that best fit their
needs.

Information & Referral Specialist

02/01/2014 — Present

2-1-1NH

603-621-6893

Overnight on-call specialist handling HomeHelp NH, homeless calls and the NH Treatment locator calls. 1 am
familiar with both Refer and the taxonomy due to previously volunteering to do database work.

Volunteer

10/10/2012-02/01/2014

2-1-1 NH

603-621-6892

Worked in the database to keep resources current through formal updates, website search, and contact with
agencies. Maintained and linked taxonomy terms so that they would be most efficient for both I&R Specialists
and website users.

Personal Care Attendant

04/02/2012 - 09/4/2012

Granite State Independent Living

Helped an elderly woman with basic needs such as eating, dressing, and bathing.

MiIS Assistant



01/1/2010-03/18/2010

Shriver Job Corps

978-784-2600

Worked with team members to collect and sanitize 90 staff computers; replacing them with 90 new computers
which we installed, secured, and deployed.

Instructors Assistant

04/09-06/09

Shriver Job Corps

978-846-9917

Worked with new computer technology instructor to plan and implement a new and more efficient course and
study material. Helped with day to day tasks such as, attendance, class order, and student help.

Education:

Manchester Community College
Psychology/Behavioral Science
01/21/2014

Microsoft Certified Professional

Installing, configuring, and administering Microsoft Windows XP Professional.
Shriver Job Corps

09/22/09

CompTIA Network + Certification

Maintaining, troubleshooting, and repairing computer networks and their components.
Shriver Job Corps

07/09/09

CompTIA A+ Certification

Maintaining, troubleshooting and repairing computers and their components.
Shriver Job Corps

04/21/09

GED

Shriver Job Corps
04/18/08

References available upon request




Dawn Schneider

SUMMARY

Skill Highlights- Customer service professional offering 11 years of diversified experience. Excellent
communication and problem-solving skills. Dedicated to achieving customer satisfaction as well as meeting or
surpassing company expectations. Able to focus on projects, develop strategies and meet or exceed deadlines.
Strong rapport with personnel, customers, and associates based on knowledge, professionalism, and integrity.

WORK EXPERIENCE

211NH December 2015-Present
Information and Referral Specialist

e Answer incoming phone calls to provide information and referral service activities including intake,
assessment and referral.
Assess the callers needs and level of crises intervention required
Answering a multi-line phone to assist callers with questions about public, private or government
resources for health and social services

e Screening callers for needed services to ensure appropriate referrals are given To perform this job
successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

e Providing specific and detailed information to callers about accessing public, private, or government
health and social services.

e Entering call data accurately and completely into the 2-1-1 NH database in accordance with established
standards

e Provide advocacy for inquirers when needed by interacting with clients and agencies in resolving
problems and providing information.

e Researching new resource information for inclusion in the resource database Providing 2-1-1
representation at community outreach events and service delivery meetings as needed

Trugreen February 2015-November 2015
Customer Service Representative/Accounts Receivable

» Communicate with customers daily

+ Communicate information clearly and accurately

+ Committed to the assistance and support of others while maintaining a cheerful and helpful attitude

¢ Built rapport with customers through effective and precise communication

¢ Build rapport and trust quickly with clients and colleagues

*  Assisted customers with inquiries and provided all pertinent information

» Researched accounts, answered questions, and worked with new customers

*  Successfully pacified hostile or antagonistic callers and negotiated a mutually agreeable solution by

patiently providing alternatives to reconcile the customer's needs with the company's objectives
¢ Highly trained and skilled in processing personal and confidential information

Little Mexico Restaurant August 2014-May 2015
Server/Bartender

Experienced hands on in food/Beverage

Skilled in maintaining inventory of bar

Experienced in mixing drinks and serving alcohol

Excellent organizational skills and work well under pressure

Punctual, team player, dedicated and supportive of co-workers

Efficient in maintaining and orderly and clean work space



Proficient in handling cash, debit, and credit transactions

Nagler Group April 2014-August 2014
Customer Service Representative (Temp)

Communicate with customers daily via telephone and email

Verify customer orders using various programs

Research customer accounts to ensure accuracy of information

Set up appointments and verified these with customer

Answered any questions regarding products and services

Successfully pacify hostile or antagonistic callers and negotiate a mutually agreeable solution by
patiently providing alternatives to reconcile the customer's needs with the company's objectives
Processed personal and confidential information

Ultimate Staffing, Boston MA November 2013-April 2014
Customer Care Representative (Temp)

Communicate with customers daily

Take customer orders from various catalogs and upsell where appropriate

Assist customers with inquiries and provide all pertinent information

Research accounts, answer questions, and work with new customers

Successfully pacify hostile or antagonistic callers and negotiate a mutually agreeable solution by
patiently providing alternatives to reconcile the customer’s needs with the company's objectives
Process personal and confidential information

Potpourri Group Inc., Billerica MA November 2013-December 2013
Customer Care Representative (seasonal)

Communicate with customers daily

Take customer orders from various catalogs and upsell where appropriate

Assist customers with inquiries and provide all pertinent information

Research accounts, answer questions, and work with new customers

Successfully pacify hostile or antagonistic callers and negotiate a mutually agreeable solution by
patiently providing alternatives to reconcile the customer’s needs with the company's objectives
Process personal and confidential information

Express Scripts/Freedom Fertility, Byfield MA January 2013 - May 2013
Patient Care Coordinator

Communicated with customers daily

Communicated information clearly and accurately

Committed to the assistance and support of others while maintaining a cheerful and helpful attitude
Built rapport with customers through effective and precise communication

Build rapport and trust quickly with clients and colleagues

Assisted customers with inquiries and provided all pertinent information

Researched accounts, answered questions, and worked with new customers

Successfully pacified hostile or antagonistic callers and negotiated a mutually agreeable solution by
patiently providing alternatives to reconcile the customer’'s needs with the company's objectives
Highly trained and skilled in processing personal and confidential information

Aerotek, Woburn, MA September 2012 - January 2013
Patient Care Coordinator (Temp)

Communicated with customers daily

Communicated information clearly and accurately

Committed to the assistance and support of others while maintaining a cheerful and helpful attitude.
Built rapport with customers through effective and precise communication

Build rapport and trust quickly with clients and colleagues

Assisted customers with inquiries and provided all pertinent information

Researched accounts, answered questions, and worked with new customers



»  Successfully pacified hostile or antagonistic callers and negotiated a mutually agreeable solution by
patiently providing alternatives to reconcile the customer’s needs with the company’s objectives
«  Highly trained and skilled in processing personal and confidential information

Internal Revenue Service, Andover, MA January 2002 - November 2010
Customer Service Associate
Tax Examination-Call Center
» Investigated and resolved customer inquiries and complaints in a timely and empathetic manner
« Prepared and drafted all outgoing correspondence in a timely manner
» Verified and logged in deadlines for responding to daily inquiries and outlined the appropriate process
and procedures necessary to fulfill and complete inquiries
= Provided efficient customer service to clients
» Computed, recorded, and proofread data, records and reports
+ Complied with federal, state, and company policies, procedures and regulations
+ Communicated with customers, employees and other individuals to answer questions and explain
information
« Reviewed files, records and other documents to obtain information and respond to requests

EDUCATION AND TRAINING
Northern Essex Community College, Haverhill, MA
Associates, Human Services/Drug and Alcohol Certificate 2014-present

Other Activities
Outreach Coordinator for The Place of the Skull Motorcycle Ministry through Rock Church Ministries in Plaistow,
NH



Donna Velt

N

PROFILE

With an extensive background in retail banking and customer service, | have a track record of achieving
sales goals, service targets and operational soundness. Highly motivated and experienced in providing
superior customer satisfaction and building long-lasting business relationships. Team oriented with
excellent time management and organizational skills, polished interpersonal and communication skills.

EXPERIENCE

Granite United Way Manchester, NH
Information and Referral Specialist May 2016 — Present

Answer incoming phone calls to provide information and referral service activities including
intake, assessment and referral

Assess the caller’s needs and level of crises intervention required

Providing specific and detailed information to callers about accessing public, private, or
government health and social services

Entering call data accurately and completely into the 2-1-1 NH database in accordance with
established standards

Serve as the on call 211 I&R Specialist off hours, weekends, or holidays as needed

Temporary Agency Bedford,NH
Customer Service/Accounts Receivable Specialist November 2015 - March 2016

Process accounts receivables via online and lockbox payments to ensure that customer accounts
correctly reflect payments

Prepare account billing and payment adjustments; debits/credits/abatements

Sort incoming mail and faxes to correct internal recipient or customer account

Operate scanner ensuring that all receivables are distributed to correct account

Run/research credit balance accounts, note, and create appropriate adjustments

Prepare and distribute cash reports as established by procedure

Process return items

Retail Department Store Manchester, NH
Sales Associate November 2014 — Present

Consistently achieve sales goals utilizing a proactive method by asking questions, listening to
shoppers’ needs, and providing options and advice on meeting and exceeding those needs
Assist customers in all aspects of service fulfillment by demonstrating proficient use of
proprietary devices and applications

Perform daily audits of department inventory

Proactively create enhanced shopping experiences through the heightened use of tools,
technology and collaboration

Temporary Agency Bedford, NH
Mortgage Loan Processor September 2015 — November 2015

Reviewed mortgage loan applications for integrity and completeness; including compliance with
regulatory disclosures and guidelines

Sorted mortgage loan applications and transfer uploaded application files into the loan origination
system

Updated application information as data and verifications were received

Ensured proper notice and regulatory treatment of denied, incomplete, and withdrawn
applications

Researched and responded to all customer and applicant inquiries



Temporary Agency Bedford, NH
Commercial Loan Document Imaging Specialist November 2014 — June 2015

e Prepared commercial loan documents

e Prepared documents for centralized storage in preparation of Eastern Bank acquisition

* Reviewed and sorted confidential commercial credit files with tact and discretion

» Entered information from loan documents into Eastern Bank’s system for cataloging and indexing

Insurance Company Hooksett, NH
Customer Care Professional February 2014 — July 2014

¢ Provided phone support to resolve member inquiries related to benefits, claims, and
correspondence requests
¢ Researched complex member issues in a timely manner

Banking NH
Banking Center Manager February 2012 — May 2013

e Managed and coached a team of sales and service professionals to meet and exceed sales targets
¢ Led ateam of service professionals to provide superior customer service

» Ensured operational excellence of banking center

Ensured collaboration between branch and on-site specialists

Banking NH
Senior Branch Manager August 2006 — August 2011

e Managed overall administra